Public Document Pack

CHAIR COUNCILLOR SMITH ( a

CITY COUNCIL

’9< WEST / CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE

AGENDA

To: City Councillors: Smith (Chair), Kightley (Vice-Chair), Bick, Cantrill, Hipkin,
Reid, Reiner, Rosenstiel and Tucker

County Councillors: Brooks-Gordon, Nethsingha and Whitebread

Dispatched: Wednesday, 17 August 2011

Date: Thursday, 25 August 2011

Time: 7.00 pm

Venue: The Hicks Room, University Centre, Granta Place, Mill Lane,
Cambridge CB2 1RU

Contact: Toni Birkin Direct Dial: 01223 457086

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (PLANNING)

Members of the committee are asked to declare any interests in the items
on the agenda. In the case of any doubt, the advice of the Head of Legal
should be sought before the meeting.

3 PLANNING APPLICATIONS
3a 11/0726/FUL - Victoria House, 1 Victoria Street (Pages 71 - 18)

3b 11/0653/FUL- 68 Maids Causeway (Pages 19 - 38)
Main agenda items will not be considered before 8.00pm

4 MINUTES (Pages 39 - 52)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 21% June 2011 as a true and
accurate record. (Pages 39 - 52)



MATTERS AND ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (MAIN AGENDA ITEMS)
OPEN FORUM

Refer to the ‘Information for the Public’ section for rules on speaking

POLICING AND SAFER NEIGHBOURHOODS (Pages 53 - 68)

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS IN THE HIGHWAY
(Pages 69 - 72)



INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC

The Open Forum section of the Agenda: Members of the public are invited to ask
any question, or make a statement on any matter related to their local area covered
by the City Council Wards for this Area Committee. The Forum will last up to 30
minutes, but may be extended at the Chair’s discretion. The Chair may also time
limit speakers to ensure as many are accommodated as practicable.

To ensure that your views are heard, please note that there are
Question Slips for Members of the Public to complete.

Public speaking rules relating to planning applications:

Anyone wishing to speak about one of these applications may do so provided that
they have made a representation in writing within the consultation period and have
notified the Area Committee Manager shown at the top of the agenda by 12 Noon
on the day before the meeting of the Area Committee.

Filming, recording and photography at council meetings is allowed subject to
certain restrictions and prior agreement from the chair of the meeting.

Requests to film, record or photograph, whether from a media organisation or a
member of the public, must be made to the democratic services manager at least
three working days before the meeting.

REPRESENTATIONS ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS

Public representations on a planning application should be made in writing (by e-
mail or letter, in both cases stating your full postal address), within the deadline set
for comments on that application. You are therefore strongly urged to submit your
representations within this deadline.

Submission of late information after the officer's report has been published is to be
avoided. A written representation submitted to the Environment Department by a
member of the public after publication of the officer's report will only be considered if
it is from someone who has already made written representations in time for inclusion
within the officer's report.

Any public representation received by the Department after 12 noon two business
days before the relevant Committee meeting (e.g. by 12.00 noon on Monday before a
Wednesday meeting; by 12.00 noon on Tuesday before a Thursday meeting) will not
be considered.

The same deadline will also apply to the receipt by the Department of additional



information submitted by an applicant or an agent in connection with the relevant item
on the Committee agenda (including letters, e-mails, reports, drawings and all other
visual material), unless specifically requested by planning officers to help decision-
making.

At the meeting public speakers at Committee will not be allowed to circulate any
additional written information to their speaking notes or any other drawings or other
visual material in support of their case that has not been verified by officers and that
is not already on pubilic file.

To all members of the Public
Any comments that you want to make about the way the Council is running Area
Committees are very welcome. Please contact the Committee Manager listed at the

top of this agenda or complete the forms supplied at the meeting.

If you would like to receive this agenda by e-mail, please contact the Committee
Manager.

Additional information for public. City Council officers can also be emailed
firsthame.lasthame@cambridge.gov.uk

Information (including contact details) of the Members of the City Council can
be found from this page:
http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/democracy




Agenda ltem 3a

WEST/CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 25" August 2011

Application 11/0726/FUL Agenda

Number Item

Date Received 11th July 2011 Officer Miss
Sophie
Pain

Target Date 5th September 2011
Ward Market

Site Victoria House 1 Victoria Street Cambridge
Cambridgeshire CB1 1JP

Proposal Change of use from 6 bedroom residence to 4
sustainable boutique bed & breakfast including
private residential accommodation for proprietor.

Applicant Mrs Elizabeth Cameron
69 De Freville Avenue Cambridge Cambridgeshire
CB4 1HP

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION/AREA CONTEXT

1.1 1 Victoria Street is located close to the junction with Emmanuel
Road, to the east of the City Centre on the northern side of the
street. The property is located at the end of a terrace and is
adjacent to the rear of 7, 8 and 9 Emmanuel Road. It
comprises four floors, 3 above ground level and one below.
The street is mainly residential with the Unitarian Church
situated on the opposite side of the road.

1.2 There is access to the rear of the property through a shared
garage area, which is accessed from Earl Street, which runs
parallel to Victoria Street.

1.3 The site falls within the City of Cambridge Conservation Area

No.1 (Central) and is assessed in the Kite Conservation Area
Appraisal.

Page 1



2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

THE PROPOSAL

The applicant seeks planning permission for a change of use of
the property from a residential dwelling (Use Class C3) to a
guesthouse (Use Class C1), while retaining part of the property
as permanent residential accommodation.

The guest-house would consist of four bedrooms, two
bathrooms, a drawings room and dining room for use by guests.
The owners would retain 2 bedrooms, a bathroom and a
kitchen/breakfast room.

The application is accompanied by a series of floorplans, which
show the distribution of the guest and owners rooms.

SITE HISTORY

No recent site history.

PUBLICITY

Advertisement: No
Adjoining Owners: Yes
Site Notice Displayed: No
POLICY

Central Government Advice

Planning Policy Statement 3 (PPS3): Housing has been
reissued with the following changes: the definition of previously
developed land now excludes private residential gardens to
prevent developers putting new houses on the brownfield sites
and the specified minimum density of 30 dwellings per hectare
on new housing developments has been removed. The
changes are to reduce overcrowding, retain residential green
areas and put planning permission powers back into the hands
of local authorities. (June 2010)

Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning for the Historic
Environment (2010)

Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport (2001)

Circular 11/95 — The Use of Conditions in Planning Permissions

Page 2



5.2

5.3

5.4

East of England Plan 2008

T9: Walking, Cycling and other Non-Motorised Transport
T14 Parking

ENV6: The Historic Environment

ENV7: Quality in the Built Environment

WM6: Waste Management in Development

Cambridge Local Plan 2006

3/4 Responding to context

3/7 Creating successful places
4/11 Conservation Areas

4/13 Pollution and amenity

6/3 Tourist accommodation
8/2 Transport impact

8/6 Cycle parking

8/10 Off-street car parking

Material Considerations
Central Government Guidance

Letter from Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government (27 May 2010)

The coalition government is committed to rapidly abolish
Regional Strategies and return decision making powers on
housing and planning to local councils. Decisions on housing
supply (including the provision of travellers sites) will rest with
Local Planning Authorities without the framework of regional
numbers and plans.

Written Ministerial Statement: Planning for Growth (23
March 2011)

Includes the following statement:

When deciding whether to grant planning permission, local
planning authorities should support enterprise and facilitate
housing, economic and other forms of sustainable development.
Where relevant and consistent with their statutory obligations
they should therefore:

Page 3



6.0

6.1

(i) consider fully the importance of national planning policies
aimed at fostering economic growth and employment, given the
need to ensure a return to robust growth after the recent
recession;

(i) take into account the need to maintain a flexible and
responsive supply of land for key sectors, including housing;

(iii) consider the range of likely economic, environmental and
social benefits of proposals; including long term or indirect
benefits such as increased consumer choice, more viable
communities and more robust local economies (which may,
where relevant, include matters such as job creation and
business productivity);

(iv) be sensitive to the fact that local economies are subject to
change and so take a positive approach to development where
new economic data suggest that prior assessments of needs
are no longer up-to-date;

(v) ensure that they do not impose unnecessary burdens on
development.

In determining planning applications, local planning authorities
are obliged to have regard to all relevant considerations. They
should ensure that they give appropriate weight to the need to
support economic recovery, that applications that secure
sustainable growth are treated favourably (consistent with policy
in PPS4), and that they can give clear reasons for their
decisions.

City Wide Guidance
CONSULTATIONS
Cambridgeshire County Council (Engineering)

The car parking layout would be impractical to provide
independent access for four vehicles. Following implementation
of any permission issued by the Planning Authority in regard to
this proposal the residents and guests of the establishment will
not qualify for Residents' Permits (other than visitor permits for
the resident) within the existing Residents' Parking Schemes
operating on surrounding streets. This should be brought to the

Page 4



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.0

7.1

7.2

attention of the applicant, and an appropriate informative added
to any Permission that the Planning Authority is minded to issue
with regard to this proposal.

Head of Environmental Services

Recommendation of conditions relating to construction hours
and waste storage.

Historic Environment Manager

This application refers to a building within the Central
Conservation Area. The proposal is to change the use of the
above building from residential to a bed and breakfast property.
There are no external alterations proposed and therefore there
will be limited impact on the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area.

Access Officer

The change of use will be subject to Part M of the Building
Regulations and that while the property cannot accommodate
wheelchair users, perhaps they could ensure that they make
appropriate provision for those who do not use wheelchairs but
who may have mobility, sensory, dexterity or learning
difficulties.

The above responses are a summary of the comments that
have been received. Full details of the consultation responses
can be inspected on the application file.

REPRESENTATIONS

The owners/occupiers of the following addresses have made
representations:

1 2 Victoria Street
1 4 Christ’s Court, 26 Victoria Street

The representations can be summarised as follows:

1 Concerns regarding the submitted property boundaries
and the ownership of the covered side passage;

Page 5



7.3

8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

1 The boundary between 1 and 2 Victoria Street should be
suitably secured as there will be strangers using this
space which is in close proximity to the rear elevation of
No.2;

1 Concerns regarding guests creating noise as they return
late at night;

1 Concern that the proposal will increase traffic generation
and contribute to the congestion experienced in the area.

The above representations are a summary of the comments
that have been received. Full details of the representations can
be inspected on the application file.

ASSESSMENT

From the consultation responses and representations received
and from my inspection of the site and the surroundings, |
consider that the main issues are:

Principle of development

Impact upon the Conservation Area
Disabled access

Residential amenity

Other matters

Refuse arrangements

Car and cycle parking

Third party representations

i AR S i

Principle of Development

Policy 6/3 of the Cambridge Local Plan (2006), relating to tourist
accommodation states;

‘Development which maintains, strengthens and diversifies the
range of short-stay accommodation will be permitted. Provision
should be made for disabled visitors. In the case of change
from residential use, part of the accommodation must be
retained as permanent residential accommodation.’

The floor plans demonstrate that at basement level, the rooms
and sauna will be retained for private use, at ground floor level
the inner hall, kitchen and breakfast room will be retained as a
private accommodation for the owners and at second floor,
there are two bedrooms and bathroom for private use. This

Page 6



8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

level of private permanent residential accommodation for the
proprietors is considered to be adequate and is in accordance
with policy 6/3 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2006.

The principle of the development is in accordance with policy
6/3 of the Cambridge Local Plan (2006).

Impact upon the Conservation Area

As the proposal is for a change of use, there are no concerns
that the proposed use will harm the Conservation Area.

The development is in accordance with East of England Plan
2008 policies ENV6 and ENV7 and policy 4/11 of the
Cambridge Local Plan 2006.

Disabled access

The supporting text to Policy 6/3 of the Cambridge Local Plan
2006 states that the needs of disabled people should be
considered in all applications for new tourist accommodation.
The Access Officer has commented that attempts should be
made to include facilities for those who do not need a
wheelchair, but may have mobility, sensory, dexterity or
learning difficulties. This is required by Part M of the Building
Regulations and as a result will be addressed correctly though
this legislation.

In my opinion the proposal is compliant with Cambridge Local
Plan (2006) policies 3/7 and 6/3.

Residential Amenity

The neighbouring occupier at 2 Victoria Street has raised an
objection. Given the proximity, the impact of the change of use
has to be carefully considered.

The ownership of 1 Victoria Street is unusual in that it extends
and wraps around the rear of 2 and 3 Victoria Street. As a
result, the garden areas of these two properties are relatively
small and in the case of No.2, the rear elevation of the property
forms part of the boundary with a small courtyard garden to the
west. With the intensification of the use of the garden area by
guests of the guesthouse, | agree with the objector, that some

Page 7



8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

8.15

arrangement to provide a suitably secure boundary treatment
should be conditioned.

The application proposes to provide car parking for 4 cars
directly behind No.2. This has the potential to impact upon the
amenity of the occupiers. It has been verbally suggested by the
Highway’s Authority that the level of car parking is reduced to
two spaces to remove the necessity of maneuvering cars in
order to get other cars out, which would disturb the
neighbouring occupiers. | consider that this is an appropriate
solution.

Moving onto concerns that noise from the proposed use would
disturb the wider street. The property is presently a 7-bedroom
property. The proposed use, at full capacity would
accommodate 8 guests and the two owners of the property,
which is an intensification of the use of the property than if it
were used by one family. However, the property does retain a
level of private accommodation and will be managed. As a
result, if there were to be instances where guests were noisy,
this could be reported to the owners. The additional impact is
not considered so significant as to warrant a refusal and will not
detrimentally impact upon the amenity of those living in the
neighbouring area.

In my opinion the proposal adequately respects the residential
amenity of its neighbours and the constraints of the site and |
consider that it is compliant with Cambridge Local Plan (2006)
policies 3/4, 3/7 and 4/13.

Other Matters

The Environmental Health Officer has recommended that
conditions are imposed concerning working and delivery hours,
in order to protect neighbouring properties. However, | consider
it unreasonable to attach these conditions, as the change of use
only requires decorative renovations to the property and should
not disturb neighbouring residents.

Refuse Arrangements
An indication of the location of the bin store has been provided,

but no large-scale details have been submitted relating to waste
storage, as part of the proposal. In order to ensure that this is

Page 8



8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

adequate, further details are required which can be
appropriately conditioned. | consider that there is appropriate
space in the rear garden to accommodate the appropriate
facilities.

In my opinion the proposal is compliant with East of England
Plan 2008 policy WM6 and Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policy
3/7.

Car and Cycle Parking

The application proposes 4 car parking spaces to the rear of the
property, which is considered to be impractical to allow
independent access as the spaces are in two rows, behind one
another. As stated above the increased manouevering involved
with this arrangement would unduly impact on residential
amenity. Furthermore, as a result of the proposed change of
use, the resident’s parking permit belonging to No.1 will be
withdrawn. Therefore, it is considered appropriate, for the level
of car parking to be reduced to two spaces to be used as a
appropriate.  This is in accordance with the Car Parking
Standards within the Cambridge Local Plan 2006. The site is
located centrally and within walking distance of the bus station.
Subject to a revised car-parking layout for 2 cars being
appropriately secured by condition, the arrangement would be
satisfactory.

Inevitability, there will be some guests who arrive by car, but the
owners will need to manage and market this carefully as the
surrounding streets benefit from resident parking schemes, in
which guests will not be able to park.

The application makes reference to a cycle storage area for 3
cycles. | consider that this level of provision is inappropriate
and a greater number of spaces is reconfigured. The cycle
parking standards within the Cambridge Local Plan 2006
require as a minimum for guesthouses, 2 cycle spaces per 10
bedrooms and 1 space for every 2 members of staff. Additional
space should therefore be provided for cycle storage in the
event that guests wish to hire bicycles. At least 5 cycle spaces
should be provided, and these are secured condition.

Page 9



8.20

8.21

9.0

9.1

10.0

In my opinion the proposal is compliant with East of England
Plan 2008 policies T9 and T14 and Cambridge Local Plan
(2006) policies 8/6 and 8/10.

Third Party Representations

The concerns regarding security, parking and noise have been
addressed within the report. The outstanding matter of
ownership is a legal matter, which is not within the remit of
planning legislation. = On submitting the application, the
applicants signed the correct ownership certificates and a
declaration specifying that the information submitted was
correct.

CONCLUSION

The proposal will intensify the use of the house. However, | do
not consider that the change from Class C3 (residential) to C1
(hotels and guesthouses) will have any significant detrimental
impact on neighbour amenity or the character of the area.

RECOMMENDATION
APPROVE subject to the following conditions:

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with the requirements of section 51 of
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Prior to commencement of the approved use, details of facilities
for the covered, secured parking of 5 bicycles for use in
connection with the development hereby permitted shall be
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in
writing. The approved facilities shall be provided in accordance
with the approved details before use of the development
commences.

Reason: To ensure appropriate provision for the secure storage

of bicycles. (East of England Plan 2008 policy T9 and
Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 8/6)

Page 10



Prior to the commencement of development, full details of the
on-site storage facilities for trade waste, including waste for
recycling shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. Such details shall identify the specific
positions of where wheelie bins, paladins or any other means of
storage will be stationed and the arrangements for the disposal
of waste. The approved facilities shall be provided prior to the
commencement of the use hereby permitted and shall be
retained thereafter unless alternative arrangements are agreed
in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: To protect the amenities of nearby residents/occupiers
and in the interests of visual amenity (East of England Plan
2008 policy ENV7 and in accordance with policies 4/11 and
4/13 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2006).

Notwithstanding the approved car parking layout, prior to the
commencement of the approved use, revised details shall be
submitted to the local planning authority for the layout of two car
parking spaces. The approved layout shall be provided in
accordance with the approved details before use of the
development commences and shall thereafter be retained as
such.

Reason: To ensure the appropriate provision for car parking.
(East of England Plan 2008 policy T14 and Cambridge Local
Plan 2006 policy 8/10)

Prior to the commencement of the approved use, a plan
indicating the positions, design, materials and type of boundary
treatments to be erected, shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The boundary treatment
shall be completed before the use hereby permitted is
commenced and retained thereafter. Development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved detalils.

Reason: To ensure an appropriate boundary treatment is
implemented. (East of England Plan 2008 policy ENV7 and
Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 3/4)

The owners accommodation as shown on the approved plan

shall be retained and used as such and in no event shall it be
used for additional guest accommodation.

Page 11



Reason: to retain permanent residential accommodation
(Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 6/3).

The rear car parking area shall accommodate a maximum of 2
cars in accordance with the details approved pursuit to
condition 4 of this permission.

Reason: To protect the amenity of the neighbours (Cambridge
Local Plan 2008 policy 4/13)

INFORMATIVE: The applicant is informed that while disabled
access into the property will be addressed by Part M of the
Building Regulations, it would be advisable that appropriate
provision is made for guests who do not use wheelchairs but
may have mobility, sensory, dexterity or learning difficulties.
You are advised to contact Mr Mark Taylor, Access Officer,
Cambridge City Council 01223 457075.

INFORMATIVE: The applicant is advised that following the
implementation of this permission, the residents and guests of
the property will not qualify for residents parking permits for
Victoria Street or within the existing resident's parking schemes
operating in the surrounding streets.

Reasons for Approval

1. This development has been approved, conditionally, because
subject to those requirements it is considered to conform to the
Development Plan as a whole, particularly the following policies:

East of England plan 2008: T9, T14, ENV6, ENV7 and WM6

Cambridge Local Plan (2006):
3/4,3/7,4/11,4/13,5/4,6/3,8/2,8/6,8/10

2. The decision has been made having had regard to all other
material planning considerations, none of which was considered
to have been of such significance as to justify doing other than
grant planning permission.

Page 12



These reasons for approval can be a summary of the reasons
for grant of planning permission only. For further details on the
decision please see the officer report online at
www.cambridge.gov.uk/planningpublicaccess or visit  our
Customer Service Centre, Mandela House, 4 Regent Street,
Cambridge, CB2 1BY between 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Under Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972, the following
are “background papers” for each report on a planning application:

1.
2.

3.
4

The planning application and plans;

Any explanatory or accompanying letter or document from the
applicant;

Comments of Council departments on the application;
Comments or representations by third parties on the application
as referred to in the report plus any additional comments
received before the meeting at which the application is
considered; unless (in each case) the document discloses
“exempt or confidential information”

Any Structure Plan, Local Plan or Council Policy Document
referred to in individual reports.

These papers may be inspected on the City Council website at:
www.cambridge.gov.uk/planningpublicaccess

or by visiting the Customer Service Centre at Mandela House.

Page 13






!a Ordnance
Survey

Licensed Partner mf'\

258452m

8
3
1258452m &
& £
2 &
g‘ =
} 32m 'E
Reproduction in whole or in parl is prohibiled without the Scale 1:200
prior permission of Ordnance Survey
Ordnance Survey and the OS Symbol are registered trade- 0 % ? t:J
marks and OS MasterMap® is a rademark of Ordnance EI | 1
Survey, the nalicnal mapping agency of Greal Brilain, Fatres

The representalion of a road, track or path is no evidence
of a right of way.

Supplied by: Gelmapping
The representation of fealures as lines is no evidence

Centre Coordinales: 545411 , 268468

of a property boundary. OS Licence Number: 1000030848

11

Page

1

gD7ZB/FUL



Victoria House, 1 Victoria Street, Cambridge
Gross Internal Area 284 m? (3,060ft?) excluding basement, balconies and voids
Gross Internal Area Basement : 24 m? (256 ft%)

Scale 1-200
Proposed Floorplan ~ proprieter we &

Void Over
Kirchen / 7j

Bgd(ﬂﬂm BruH,-m ‘E

414
12" <137 A i

i3
i\ltdm/ Brnl:ﬁnﬁmm
et

‘__1"‘

Dining Room
yard Garden 265x546
161 x 467 B8 2 171"
I 2154

5-:1/\\1. %

First Floor

Second Floor



Victoria House, 1 Victotia Street, Cambridge
Gross Internal Area 284 m? (3,060£t2) excluding basement, balconies and voids
Gross Internal Area Basement : 24 m? (256 ft%)

Scale 1-200
Pfoposed 0l ~ gu&jfr accomod/d\'o/\ - 2.7} i MetreS
s
X

361 x467
0" x 154"

i - =3
?gx]m .j

. mTxss

Tz “- Inner FRall

Ve Eemm 8% 2665375
= 'l B 1z4

==

)

Sceond Foor




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Agenda ltem 3b

WEST/CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 25" August 2011

Application 11/0653/FUL Agenda

Number Iltem

Date Received 8th June 2011 Officer Miss
Sophie
Pain

Target Date
Ward
Site

Proposal

Applicant

3rd August 2011
Market

68 Maids Causeway Cambridge Cambridgeshire
CB5 8DD

The construction of one storey side and front
extension with additional roof space at first floor
level to existing detached house together with
internal alterations and external works to boundary
walls. Works to also include the demolition of part
of existing boundary solid brick wall following
purchasing of the adjacent strip of land by the
Applicant.

Mrs. Judy Davis
68 Maids Causeway Cambridge Cambridgeshire
CB5 8DD

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION/AREA CONTEXT

1.1 68 Maids Causeway is a modern two-storey dwelling, which is
situated on the corner of Maid’s Causeway and Fitzroy Lane.
The property is constructed from a multi stock brick with blue
painted timber and render to the front elevation of the property.
The dwelling is situated approximately 6 m south of the public
footpath and has hard standing to the front of the property for 3

cars.

1.2 The property is an anomaly on Maids Causeway as it is a
modern addition and does not take any architectural leads from
the predominant character of the townhouses, which line Maids
Causeway and were built during 1815 — 1825.

Page 19



1.3

1.4

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

The eastern boundary of the property is in an ‘L’ shape as there
is a section of land on the frontage with Maid’s Causeway which
is owned separately by the Cambridge City Council. Along this
boundary there is presently a 2 m buff brick wall with red brick
coping to the southern end of this boundary and planting and a
low box hedge to the northern end, on the junction of Maids
Causeway and Fitzroy Street.

The building is located within Cambridge City Conservation
Area No.1 (Central).

THE PROPOSAL

The applicant seeks planning permission for a number of
different parts. Firstly, is the construction of a single storey side
extension, infilling part of the eastern elevation of the existing
property and forming a replacement boundary wall with Fitzroy
Lane. This extension has a shallow mono-pitched roof-which
slopes from 3.2 m on the north elevation to 2.7 m on the south
elevation. This extension will be built in materials to match the
existing.

On the projecting gable roof, which fronts Maids Causeway, it is
proposed to extend the east facing roof slope further so that the
eaves lowers from 5.3 m above external ground level to 4.3 m.
Below this it is proposed to construct a first floor extension
above the existing hall and porch. This extension will be 2.6 m
in width and will provide additional space to accommodate a
fourth bedroom.

To the front of the property it is proposed to create a porch with
a flat roof and stained weatherboard cladding.

If the applicants are successful in purchasing the land adjacent
to No.68, then it is proposed to extend the existing boundary
wall around this area in order to provide additional garden
space and create a 1 m high planter to the front in order to
maintain visibility when exiting the junction. The purchase of
the land is not part of the consideration of this planning
application and any planning permission runs with the land, not
the applicant/landowner. Therefore, these proposals should be
considered on their own merit. The sale of the land by
Cambridge City Council and any issues arriving from the sale
are not material planning considerations.

Page 20



2.5

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

The application is accompanied by the following supporting
information:

1. Design and Access Statement
2. Plans

SITE HISTORY

No site history

PUBLICITY

Advertisement: Yes
Adjoining Owners: Yes
Site Notice Displayed: Yes
POLICY

Central Government Advice

Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport (2001)

Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning for the Historic
Environment (2010)

Circular 11/95 — The Use of Conditions in Planning Permissions
East of England Plan 2008

ENVG6: The Historic Environment
ENV7: Quality in the Built Environment

Cambridge Local Plan 2006
3/4 Responding to context

3/7 Creating successful places
3/14 Extending buildings

4/11 Conservation Areas
Material Considerations

City Wide Guidance

Roof Extensions Design Guide (2003)

Page 21



6.0

6.1

6.2

Area Guidelines

Kite Area Conservation Area Appraisal (1996)
CONSULTATIONS

Cambridgeshire County Council (Engineering)

The proposal should have no significant impact on the public
highway, should it gain the benefit of planning permission,
subject to the incorporation of a condition requiring that no gate
or door shall open out over the highway and an informative to
remind the applicants that it is an offence to carry works out on
the public highway into any permission that the Planning
Authority is minded to grant in regard to this application.

Historic Environment Manager

There are no objections to the demolition of the boundary wall
or the principle of development of this type on this site.

However, the alterations proposed are considered to have a
negative impact on the Conservation Area.

The proposed glass bricks are inappropriate for this location,
particularly on such a prominent wall that is visible in views
down Maids Causeway. This aspect of the proposal will allow a
negative feature to stand out further, as it is not in keeping with
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

The proposed works to the front elevation will also further
contribute to this property having a negative impact within the
Conservation Area. In particular, the flat roofed porch is not a
traditional feature and is considered inappropriate. In this
section of the Conservation Area, porches in themselves are
not part of the established character. The introduction of a
porch will create an incongruous feature, which in turn will
detract from the character and appearance of the Conservation
Area.

The stained weatherboards proposed to clad the ground floor

extension beneath the flat roofed porch are also not considered
appropriate in this location as this in an incongruous feature that

Page 22



6.3

7.0

7.1

7.2

detracts from the established character and appearance of the
Conservation Area.

Policy 4/11 of the Cambridge Local Plan states that
[ Developments within, or which affect the setting of or impact
on views into and out of the Conservation Area, will only be
permitted if: --- b. --- the alteration of an existing building
preserves or enhances the character or appearance of the
Conservation Area by faithfully reflecting its context or providing
a successful contrast with it] . This application complies with
neither of the aspects of this Policy for the reasons stated
above and as such should not be permitted.

Policy HE10 of PPS5, states that [/local planning authorities
should treat favourably applications that preserve those
elements of the setting that make a positive contribution to or
better reveal the significant of the asset]l . This application
does not comply with this policy for the reasons stated above
and as such should not be permitted.

The above responses are a summary of the comments that
have been received. Full details of the consultation responses
can be inspected on the application file.

REPRESENTATIONS

Councillor Bick has requested that this application be heard at
Committee for the following reason;

1 To allow full transparency for the planning issues
independently of the City Council's role as landowner of
this site.

The owners/occupiers of the following addresses have made
representations:

1 Brunswick and North Kite Residents’ Association, 61
Maids Causeway;

1 61 Maids Causeway

[1 57 Maids Causeway

Page 23



7.3 The representations can be summarised as follows:

[

The external alterations are neither in keeping with the
existing building, nor enhance the appearance of the
property, which is already and anomalous construction in
the Conservation Area;

The height of the proposed boundary wall, a continuation
of the existing 2 m high wall, will be visually unattractive
and overbearing;

The development is considered to be too large for the size
of the plot;

The proposed high boundary wall will be an increased
safety hazard for pedestrians and cyclists crossing Fitzroy
Lane as it will further obscure their sight of traffic coming
down Fitzroy Street;

The land in question is presently used by pedestrians to
avoid vehicles and should be retained for this purpose. |If
it is to be built upon, then a pedestrian crossing should be
built at the mouth of the Lane; and

The land to be built upon constitutes a public-right of way,
albeit currently unregistered and if it is built upon, it will
force pedestrians to walk straight into the road;

7.4 The above representations are a summary of the comments
that have been received. Full details of the representations can
be inspected on the application file.

8.0

8.1

ASSESSMENT

From the consultation responses and representations received
and from my inspection of the site and the surroundings, |
consider that the main issues are:

1.

AN i

Context of site, design, external spaces and impact on the
Conservation Area

Impact on the Conservation Area

Residential amenity

Highway safety

Car and cycle parking

Third party representations

Page 24



8.2

8.3

8.4

Context of site, design, external spaces and impact on the
Conservation Area

Single storey side and front extension

The proposed single storey side extension will be significantly
obscured by the rebuilt boundary wall in this location, which is
proposed as 3 m in height, 0.5 m higher than the boundary wall
to either side. The extension will also be visible from Maids
Causeway, as it will rise above that section of wall by 1 m. ltis
proposed to plant a tree in the garden, which will to some
degree screen the extension from the street. However, even if
planting were not to be introduced, the extension will be
constructed in materials to match the existing and | do not
consider that this element of the proposal will be harmful to the
appearance of the Conservation Area. However, the proposal
does seek to put glass blocks into the rebuilt section of the
boundary wall to provide diffused light into the proposed dining
room. The Conservation Officer considers that this is
inappropriate for this prominent location and | concur with this
view. This design feature will draw the eye to this neutral
feature and is considered to be out of keeping with the
Conservation Area. A condition can be imposed which seeks
amended plans, removing this design feature prior to
construction of the wall.

It is also proposed to re-design the porch to the front of the
property, which will be visible in the street scene of Maids
Causeway. At present, the property has a recessed porch and
the applicant seeks to formalise this entrance. The
Conservation Officer and objectors consider that the proposed
flat roof porch and the use of stained weatherboards are not
appropriate to the area and that they will be a negative feature
within the Conservation Area.

This property is an anomaly within Maids Causeway as it is a
later addition, which reflects 1970’s architecture rather than the
predominant character of Maids Causeway. As a result, the
design of the proposed front elevation reflects this and is
appropriate to the building. To consider traditional approaches
on this building, | believe, would lead to the appearance of the
building being even more at odds with the surrounding area.
However, | do agree that the use of materials, such as stained
weatherboards on the porch may not be entirely appropriate to

Page 25



8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

the area and as a result. This is because it is not a material that
is used in the area, which is why | consider that the imposition
of a materials condition would be appropriate in this instance.

First Floor side extension and roof extension

The introduction of the first floor extension and extension of the
roof slope are considered to be acceptable. The rooflights,
providing they are a ‘conservation’ design, which can be
conditioned, will be acceptable. They do not adversely alter the
character of the property and will not harm the appearance of
the Conservation Area.

Boundary wall

The proposed eastern boundary wall will be approximately 2.5
m in height, save for where the proposed single storey
extension is proposed, where the height will rise to 3 m. Then
as the wall nears the junction with Maids Causeway, the height
reduces to 2.2 m and then down to a low brick planter, which is
700 mm in height for a distance of 3 m back from the junction.
It is proposed to construct this wall from bricks to match the
existing, both in buff and red, with a creasing tile coping. The
proposal also seeks to introduce two sections of glass blocks
into this boundary wall. This is considered to be an anomalous
feature and should be removed. Subject to a condition
requiring their removal, | consider that the extension of this wall
in visual terms is acceptable and will not be visually unattractive
or overbearing.

In my opinion the proposal is compliant with East of England
Plan 2008, policies ENV6 and ENV7 and Cambridge Local Plan
(2006) policies 3/4, 3/7, 3/14 and 4/11 and guidance within
PPS5: Planning in the Historic Environment (2010).

Residential Amenity

Impact on amenity of neighbouring occupiers

As the proposed alterations are to the east of the property,
No.66, to the west will not be affected by the proposals.

Grafton House to the rear of the site also has no windows close
to the common boundary and as the proposals are focused

Page 26



8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

9.0

9.1

towards the front of the property, | do not consider that their
amenity will be detrimentally harmed.

In my opinion the proposal adequately respects the residential
amenity of its neighbours and the constraints of the site and |
consider that it is compliant with Cambridge Local Plan (2006)
policies 3/4 and 3/7.

Highway Safety

The Highway Engineer has considered the proposal and the
implication that it may have on highway safety. It is considered
that the proposal will have no significant impact upon the public
highway and that a condition should be imposed so that no gate
or door opens over the public highway. As no such
arrangement is proposed, | do not consider it is reasonable to
impose such a condition.

The proposal seeks to place the boundary wall around the area,
which is presently used for planting and is not a public right of
way. The wall will be reduced in height as it gets closer to the
junction with Maids Causeway and as a result, it is not
considered that visibility will be impaired. There are no
proposals to build over the existing public footpath or dropped
pavement which is in line with the crossing which in place at the
mouth of Fitzroy Street.

In my opinion the proposal is compliant with Cambridge Local
Plan (2006) policy 8/2.

Third Party Representations

| believe that most of the neighbours concerns have been
addressed within the report. The outstanding concern is that if
the land in question is to be built upon, then a pedestrian
crossing should be constructed at the mouth of Fitzroy Lane.
This would be a decision for the Highway Authority to make and
would be within their jurisdiction to implement.

CONCLUSION
In the event that the land is not purchased, then the proposed

development could proceed with the exception of the extended
boundary wall as the land on which the single storey side and

Page 27



9.2

10.0

front extension and first floor extension is already owned by the
applicant. Although the site is constrained, the area to the side
of the property does not positively contribute to the amenity
space of the property at present. Therefore, | consider that if
the proposal were to be built without the additional land, it would
still be acceptable.

The proposal will increase the size of the property, which is on a
constrained site. However, with the proposed layout of the site |
consider that sufficient amenity space would be retained. The
proposed extensions are subsidiary to the main dwelling and
subject to the imposition of conditions, | consider that the
proposal is acceptable.

RECOMMENDATION

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with the requirements of section 51 of
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

No development shall take place until samples of the materials
to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
development hereby permitted have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the external surfaces
is appropriate. (East of England Plan 2008 policy ENV7 and
Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies 3/4, 3/12 and 3/14)

Notwithstanding the approved boundary wall to the east,
revised details omitting the glassblocks, shall be submitted to
the local planning authority prior to the commencement of
development. The approved boundary wall shall be provided in
accordance with the approved details and shall thereafter be
retained as such.

Reason: To protect the visual amenity and special interest of
the Conservation Area (East of England Plan 2008 policies
ENV6 and ENV7 and Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies 3/4,
3/7 and 4/11).

Page 28



Prior to the insertion of rooflights, full details of proprietary
rooflights shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority.

Reason: To protect the special interest of the Conservation
Area (East of England Plan 2008 policy ENV6 and Cambridge
Local Plan 2006 policy 4/11)

All joinery shall be recessed at least 50/75 mm back from the
face of the wall. The means of finishing of the 'reveal' shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. Development will be carried out in accordance with
the approved details and shall thereafter be retained as such.

Reason: To protect the special interest of the Conservation
Area (East of England Plan 2008 policy ENV6 and Cambridge
Local Plan 2006 policy 4/11)

Except with the prior written agreement of the local planning
authority in writing no construction work or demolition shall be
carried out or plant operated other than between the following
hours: 0800 hours to 1800 hours Monday to Friday, 0800 hours
to 1300 hours on Saturday and at no time on Sundays, Bank or
Public Holidays.

Reason: To protect the amenity of the adjoining properties.
(Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 4/13)

INFORMATIVE: The applicant should be aware that rooflights
which stand proud of the plane of the roof such as Velux are
unlikely to be approved although conservation types may be
appropriate.

INFORMATIVE: This development involves work to the public
highway that will require the approval of the County Council as
Highway Authority. It is an OFFENCE to carry out any works
within the public highway, which includes a public right of way,
without the permission of the Highway Authority. Please note
that it is the applicant] s responsibility to ensure that, in
addition to planning permission, any necessary consents or
approvals under the Highways Act 1980 and the New Roads
and Street Works Act 1991 are also obtained from the County
Council.

Page 29



INFORMATIVE: Public Utility apparatus may be affected by
this proposal. Contact the appropriate utility service to reach
agreement on any necessary alterations, the cost of which must
be borne by the applicant.

Reasons for Approval

1. This development has been approved, conditionally, because
subject to those requirements it is considered to conform to the
Development Plan as a whole, particularly the following policies:

East of England plan 2008: ENV6 and ENV7
Cambridge Local Plan (2006): 3/4,3/7,3/14 and 4/11

2. The decision has been made having had regard to all other
material planning considerations, none of which was considered
to have been of such significance as to justify doing other than
grant planning permission.

These reasons for approval can be a summary of the reasons
for grant of planning permission only. For further details on the
decision please see the officer report online at
www.cambridge.gov.uk/planningpublicaccess or visit  our
Customer Service Centre, Mandela House, 4 Regent Street,
Cambridge, CB2 1BY between 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Under Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972, the following
are “background papers” for each report on a planning application:

1.
2.

3.

The planning application and plans;

Any explanatory or accompanying letter or document from the
applicant;

Comments of Council departments on the application;
Comments or representations by third parties on the application
as referred to in the report plus any additional comments
received before the meeting at which the application is

Page 30



considered; unless (in each case) the document discloses
“exempt or confidential information”

5.  Any Structure Plan, Local Plan or Council Policy Document
referred to in individual reports.

These papers may be inspected on the City Council website at:
www.cambridge.gov.uk/planningpublicaccess
or by visiting the Customer Service Centre at Mandela House.

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



11/0653/FUL
68 Maids Causeway Cambridge Cambridgeshire CB5 8DD

Page 33




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



mm EYDOOKL: 1L JBI © WM | 5% anop iy 35 1ou 00 AIN3NFOVNVIAI ONV NSISI0 ONIING Sunesdsoour W09'3{jeBUBYBDIIBI
ﬂ i jurds 7 yim anjoaynyore usvy €220 8L
£ pasodoid Se uejd aus st 00 510 N :ql u ONG¥ZE9 eBpugue)
= . ,iaisswwum:aex“:m m ]
= abpuqwed fAemasneg spiey 89 TSN e LA U R esely sJasog g
]
i _
" |
llllllllllllllll _
|
|
|
__ (uawaaed)
|
liem Arepunog
= (89 oN) 3
L0
v ™
= >
2. ©
3 [l
AemasneD spiep gg 4]
O
jub)
c
7
@
s
Jab]
<
Y. T B % & W JF 6 W OK B B O OB ¥ 1 4w oz or om rwem 0 B




m EVDOGE: WL JBMI < g1 [ e aop v awss oo LNIAEFDVNYIA ONY NSISIO SNIQTINE Suneiodion) WwogsjesueyMED]BW
en yurds 22 q3m a1njosinyore uswiy 22210  ‘jaL
= pasotiold se uejd lo0o[j punoiy ‘EWBLIPOBLLE 100 14/30/L0 2 2 u
L paucyisodal iEM UORUBEXE 1523 ‘PRPPE LOISURIXE |UALL < LL/S0/LZ P AdH N ONG bZE9 s0pHque]
I“_r 3 ‘0l0lg @y)g paceidas Apmig ‘papUAE eany BUQ PUB JRIS 1) 4/G0/FE 9 ATY m eyfiugduy
"RUAIPUSILE Jautpy PG D Al
E8 &n—_—u—_—zﬂn— ’ﬂ;ﬂw——ﬂ"— w——_ﬂs ﬂ@ “PappE BUI] O S100p FUB SMOPUM PepuBllz e20is epkoig ‘pajean iejueid meu ‘oed epiS 1| L/pOB) B AR 830[) 5403300 g
suaspay
n 8
] (HN) (g8 ON)
[1EM Aiepunoy
- PLEOG LOANQUISIP / Ja3Blu SU103)8 tilAs——  Joysi v2B
| oe | (dwms mau)
t o
! = "
M M
£ |
& , .“ ) wooJlpag 49
& unn
AT
i . wooy Buian \o
oned Jeey g T | _ ............... J“
; L { I ! (ap]
4 ] : i)
- 7 y lleH :
TR ] ] : uBLIN : u m
= , o Apms m =
= R | , M ﬂ o m pJeoqdng @ ”
5 T | T o GeuqEs i
& OO0 Buly) G= ;
O | o m— [
: #au) i(da o) 1 oo -
}.\Lwﬂv 3 1 -~ ; - -l+ I - . L. - ¥ e - & |
Lid P B g g e o o e e S EEEE LR | Rt i e il
= a@% = W\(/m on M Buiuig / — ?gﬁiﬁh presiti _ “ e : , o
e g 21015 U3pIE) _;m___n.%w.v y o ‘
J

oled apis v L,

| ﬁu
~ 1 : —
N " g | Sl Y Pl | s @ "




nopeasij 1sep

(3ouy Baxa)

(%00 Buxa)

00714820

{811 Bupidopaug
81312000 i)

(J2puay)

SPIEOCUAYIEIM 13qWI PIUIEIS =il | _‘;

(83t Bupoopaiu
s18s9u0) Bixa)

O
L]

sx20jq sseib Py

(3youq)

-

(sain Buppaopaiu
21310000 Bixa)

L)

O

sy20/q ssejb —

(uq)

~,

(M9JA UGPIEE] UOREABT3 1SE

68 Maids Causeway, Cambridge
Danot scale. Ifindout, ask. | rjbi : Mar 11 : :100@A3

Elevations as Proposed

(¥3uq Bixa)

[M2JA19911S) ONEABH 1SET

(¥2uq Byxa)

Revb 24/05/1: Loft conversion and new roof omitled. Garden view of Easl Elevaton added

Rev ¢. 27/05/11: Front axtension added. Eas! extension wall repositioned

Rev a. 19/04/11: Side boundary wall amended. Fenestration changes.
Revd, 01/06/11: Minor amendments.

Reve 03/06/11: Weatherboarding added ta fronl extension

Revisions:

[

Ionensiy yuoN

(12uq)

|

==

$pIROQIIYILaM JaGLIN PaUELS

(3auq)

——— " —

- | e

(uapuai)

(pakemis you
Apadgid
sanoqikou)

(sajn Bunpoopajuy
21843000 bixa)

{1ouq Bixa)

(19pusl Byxa)

IO,

h:angel
architecture with £/spirit

incorporating BUILDING DESIGN AND MANAGEMENT

(sap1 Bupyaojsaly) 8131003 B1xa) |

€ EE
g s Es
$85 gt
- £ 8%
€3 E




EWDOGL: JLIBM © QI [ e wanop uyy messioung

e L]

posoioid Se uejd 10014 1814

“SWRLIpUBLIR JOURY .11/90/10 " ARY
(L 1583 'pappe 3pxa Juald JLSULE P ABY

AL-vGZ0

afiplqued ‘femasned Spiew 89

FIUBLIpUALE p LWOCIPAR pue IS | LHSOIVE "0 ABY
“BBWIPURWE JOUIN “LLIFOVGL "q ARY
' Wo0ipd €] pappe Busog dngS 1|1l "B ASY

ININFIVNVIN ONY NOISIQ SNIGTING Susesodion
yads m YHM 2INJ03)MIE

i

wodajjefiueyaiepiiew
nsvly £2710  ‘jel

ONG $Z83  2fpuques
uoliujdwy)
250]3 $101300 €

1
| | P
wn_ 7 Am _\@ 0oJyIRg
i 1 —
i i [— ———
- | ™
| | wooupag _ (pd)
3
g _ (wimy
7 8§8008
oye)
_
o Buipue 44
(pda)
T _
I Z woolpag \ (pion)
W { _
Il
o - i (pda)
il Y HEeped
el Aol — {dm mau)

em m:am_xu 0 auy .L .

£ wooipag

|

@E

|
,ﬁvg ,ﬁ

|
| Jooufieg)

+ woolpag

Page 38




West / Central Area Committee Tuésday, 21 June 2011

WEST / CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 21 June 2011

7.30 -11.00 pm
Council Members Present:

City Councillor for

Castle (John Hipkin, Simon Kightley and Phillip Tucker)
Market (Tim Bick, Andrea Reiner and Colin Rosenstiel)
Newnham (Sian Reid and Julie Smith)

Co-opted non-voting members:

County Councillors: Belinda Brooks-Gordon (Castle)
Lucy Nethsingha (Newnham)

Sarah Whitebread (Market)

Officers Present:

Development Control Manager: Sarah Dyer
Environmental Improvements Manager: Andrew Preston
Technical Officer: Declan O’Halloran

Committee Manager: Toni Birkin

Also Present:
Richard Preston: Cambridgeshire County Council, Head of Road Safety and
Parking.

| FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL

11/31/WAC Election of Chair and Vice Chair for 2011/12

Councillor Kightley proposed and Councillor Hipkin seconded the nomination
of Councillor Smith as Chair.

Councillor Bick proposed and Councillor Reid seconded the nomination of
Councillor Kightley as Vice Chair.

Resolved (unanimously) that Councillor Smith be Chair and Councillor
Kightley be Vice Chair of West/Central Area Committee for the ensuing year.

11/32/WAC Discussion on Start time of Future Meetings

Page 39



West / Central Area Committee Tuesday, 21 June 2011

The Chair suggested that the members consider changing the start time and
the agenda order of future meetings.

The following points were raised:

V.

V.

Making planning decisions late at night might not produce the best
results.

The needs of those with small children and how convenient or otherwise
an earlier start would be.

The current arrangements that require planning applicants to wait to the
end of the meeting, which could be very late, was unfair.

The waste of officer time for a planning officer to wait to the end of the
agenda.

The need to keep a consistent start time for the main agenda items.

Resolved: (by 8 vote to 0) to make the following changes for a two meeting
trial period:

The meeting will start at 7.00pm

Planning will be the first substantive item on the agenda and continue to
it's conclusion

The remaining agenda will not be considered before 8.00pm

11/33/WAC Apologies

Apologies were received from Councillor Cantrill.

11/34/WAC Minutes

The minutes of the meting held on the 28" April 2011 were approved as a true
and accurate record.

11/35/WAC Matters and Actions arising from the Minutes

Members requested clear action points to be included in the minutes in future.
An on-line action log would be available in the near future.

Page240



West / Central Area Committee Tuesday, 21 June 2011

A member asked if the minutes could be available to the public in a more
timely fashion. The Committee Manager confirmed that the target for
publication is 10 working days.

11/36/WAC Declarations of Interest

Councillor Reid declared a personal interest in item 11/40/WAC
(Grantchester Street Zebra Crossing) as her mother lives close to the
proposed crossing.

Councillor Bick declared a personal interest in item 11/40/WAC (Prospect
Row).

Councillor Smith declared a personal interest in item 11/44/WAC as a Fellow
of a College which owns similar properties in the area.

Councillor Smith declared a personal interest in item 11/40/WAC as trustee of
Cambridge University Catholic Association, whose premises, Fisher House
abut Fisher Square.

11/37/\WAC Open Forum

1) John Lawton — Richardson Candles — | note that some candles are
now listed. Can you please tell me who did this and what about other
lights that have not been listed. What is their fate?

a) Councillor Reid responded. The Head of Planning, Patsy Dell, was working
with the County on street lighting and would be asked reply to Mr Lawton’s
guestion.

Action: Head of Planning

Councillor Rosenstiel suggested that the problem with the lights is that, while
they are attractive, it had not been possible to upgrade them to meet modern
lighting requirements.

The Head of Road Safety and Parking Services added that whilst the lights

had historic value they would no longer been seen as the primary light source.
Budgets did not allow further engineering work to upgrade them.

Page 41



West / Central Area Committee Tuesday, 21 June 2011

Councillor Reid asked if future County Council decisions on street lighting
could be reported to this committee.

2) Dick Baxter (Chair FOMC) At the April meeting of this Committee, |
sought assurances that the Council would stop illegal driving and
parking on Midsummer Common, especially outside the Fort St George
pub. The Executive Councillor for Arts and Recreation acknowledged the
issue and in a private meeting explained how he wanted the gate to be
made secure and enforcement made effective. Yet here we are 2 months
later and the gate is still left open and unlocked and staff and customers
persist in parking on the Common outside the pub. Why has the Council
failed to correct the problem?

a) Councillor Reid read out the following response on behalf of Executive
Councillor for Arts Sport and Public Places, councillor Cantrill.

The Council sent a letter too both properties on the 25" May and this detailed
that :-

Vehicles are permitted to drive from the access gate along the path to
the Fort St George public house and stop outside the property in order to
make deliveries or service the building, parking is not allowed. The gate
must be closed immediately after use.

Under the Law of Property Act 1925, it is a criminal offence to drive a
vehicle on common land without lawful authority. Parking on your own
property is of course permitted.

The Council has adapted the gate and fitted combination locks for the
properties use. Both properties have been given the access codes. Both the
area manager of Greene King and the owners of Midsummer House have
been made aware of the need to ensure the gate is locked and that parking is
not permitted on the Common.

The gate continues to be left open by those accessing the properties by car.

Officers have considered the use of clamping companies to enforce no
parking, and are in discussions with service providers.

The Council has adapted the gate and made provision for these properties to

maintain their right of access. The gate continues to be left open and vehicles
belonging to staff of the Fort St George are parking on the Common.

Paget42



West / Central Area Committee Tuesday, 21 June 2011

The Council has made every concerted effort to accommodate the properties
needs. The properties have failed to stop unlawful entry and parking.

Mr Baxter will ask supplementary questions at the next meeting when
Councillor Cantrill is present.

3) Richard Taylor — Tree planting on Jesus Green. Why has Jesus Green
Association posted a notice saying they are unhappy with the location of
some trees the Council has planted?

Peter Constable of the Jesus Green Association, confirmed that they
were unhappy as trees have been planted near park Terrace and this was
not what they had understood had been agreed. They are concerned that
a tree has been planted very close to a memorial tree.

a) Councillor Rosenstiel supported their point of view and shared concerns for
the memorial tree. Alistair Wilson (Green Spaces Manager) will be asked to
look into this.

Action: Green Spaces Manager

4) Richard Taylor — Licensing Application for the Jam House. The
application as published on the website does not include details of the
representation.

a) The application has been published in line with guidance. The
representations include personal information that cannot be redacted.
Councillor Smith (Chair of Licensing Committee) will ensure that as much
information as possible is made available to the public.

Action: Councillor Smith

11/38/WAC Parkour
The Technical Officer introduced the item on Parkour.

Four members (Tom, Sox, Zac and Jack) of a local Parkour group, Cambridge
Movement Training were present. Their group has around 25 members and
meets at the Howard Mallett Centre. They explained the difference between
Parkour and Freerunning. Parkour is about moving from one place to another
in the fastest way possible. It does not include the tricks used in Freerunning.

Page 43



West / Central Area Committee Tuesday, 21 June 2011

They asked for support for the growth of organised Parkour groups and
facilities. The equipment needed was very basic such as crash mats, rails and
boxes. The Arts and Entertainments team are working with the group to
investigate potential Parkour spaces in the City.

Members were invited to visit the Howard Mallet Centre and watch the young
people in action.

11/39/WAC 20 MPH Limit in City Centre

The committee received a report from the Head of Road Safety and Parking
seeking comments on the 20 mph speed limit in the City Centre area.

Members raised the following points:

I. Low-level signage has limited the impact of the new speed limit.
[I. Painting the speed limit directly on to the road surface might help.
lll. The statistics showing average speeds are not helpful as crawling traffic
at peak times reduces overall speed averages.
V. Seasonal trends and weather conditions also impact on the statistics.
V. Members were disappointed that the limits appeared to have had no
impact.
VI. There was a need to raise public awareness.
VIl. Police attitudes were changing and increased enforcement would help.
VIIl. Members requested more information on the numbers of observations.
Action: Head of Road Safety and Parking

Councillor Rosenstiel suggested that Maid’'s Causeway was a cause for
concern as the wide road invited speeding. He suggested that village style
flashing speed warnings would be helpful.

Council Bick (Executive Councillor for Community Development and Health)
that is was too soon to see this project as a failure. It might take several years
for the benefits to be realised. Other options, such as traffic calming, would not
be possible due to budget restraints.

Members discussed the possibility of a City-wide 20 mph zone. Recent
changes to national legislation mean this was now possible. Including areas
such as Victoria Avenue might increase public awareness of the new limits and
add consistency across the area.

Pagesd4



West / Central Area Committee Tuesday, 21 June 2011

1) John Lawton (Brunswick and North Kite Residents’ Association) —
Members of the Residents Association have had Speedwatch Training
and equipment and are currently the only active community speedwatch

group.

The Head of Road Safety and Parking agreed to take the members comments
back the Area Joint Committee (AJC). County members would feedback the
committee’s views to the AJC). He would feedback comments from the AJC to
the County Council Cabinet Member to assess the potential for any further
expenditure on the scheme on safety grounds.

Action: Councillors who are members of AJC & Head of Road Safety and
Parking

11/40/WAC Environmental Improvement Programme

The committee received a report from the Environmental Projects Manager
regarding the Environmental Improvements Programme. Members first
discussed the items requiring decisions.

Grantchester Road Traffic Calming
Councillor Reid spoke in support of the request for additional funding.

1) Kate de Courcy - It is disappointing that more local resident were not
here to comment.

a) There had been some changes to the original scheme and these had been
made to address residents concerns. Residents had been notified.

2) Public Question — Speed cameras in the area would produce better
results.

a) Cameras can only been installed to address accident black spots.
3) Why was the City Council funding this project?

a) The County Council is unable to fund this project as it does not meet the
necessary criteria to be prioritised for funding.

Page 45



West / Central Area Committee Tuesday, 21 June 2011

RESOLVED (by 8 votes to) to agree the additional £7,500 budget required for
this scheme and to approve it for implementation subject to positive
consultation and highway authority approval.

Park St, Union Society Wall

Members discussed the long history of this project. It was regarded as
regrettable that no solution could be found. Councillor Rosenstiel was unhappy
that no improvement could be made to an unsightly area of the Historic City
Centre.

RESOLVED (by 6 votes to 2) to reassign the budget for this scheme to new
schemes in the 2011/12 Programme.

Councillor Rosenstiel requested that his objection to this decision be noted.

Mud Lane Lighting
A final line of investigation is currently being pursued and therefore this
decision deferred at the suggestion of the presenting officer.

RESOLVED To defer the decision until all relevant information is available.
Members discussed the progress of approved schemes as follows.

Manor Street and King Streetcycle Parking - Agreement has been reached
with King Street Housing Society.

Prospect Row — It was suggested that the work be timed around the
construction work to Brandon Court to avoid damaged by contractors.

Histon Road Shops — The Environmental Projects Manager clarified the costs
which are spread over two years and are £2,500 in total. Councillor Smith
would contact to the Co-op as Chair of this committee in an attempt to
encourage the Coop to approve the installation of the remaining bollards
following the lack of response to date.

Action: Councillor Smith

Members discussed proposed Environmental Improvement Schemes for
2011/12.

The Environmental Projects Manager tabled an additional document regarding

Huntingdon Road 30mph extension. The cost of this project would be shared
with Girton District Council.

Pages46



West / Central Area Committee Tuesday, 21 June 2011

Central Mobility Crossings — Councillor Bick expressed concern that there was
no Highways Authority programme to address these issues. It was suggested
that the Disability Forum should be consulted to help identify the most pressing
projects.

North Terrace Gates and Cutter Ferry Bridge Cattlegrids and Gates -
members supported the gate work as the gates need to be wider to be DDA
compliant. It was suggested that the sheer volume of use causes Cutter Ferry
problems.

Gough Way Path Bridge — Members suggested the work was needed to
enable cycles with trailers to use the bridge.

Canterbury Street — members were unhappy that this scheme came to them
with no estimate for the cost. The Environmental Project Manager stated that
he was bringing the project at an early stage to allow members to consider all
the projects before allocating funds. The costs would be an estimated £15,000.

Jesus Green and Midsummer Common Paths — Members debated the cost of
this scheme, as there is not enough money in the budget to cover all the
schemes. Jesus Green footpaths have been a long-standing problem.

Granchester Zebra Crossing — Members felt that this proposal needed further
consideration before a decision could be reached.

RESOLVED (Unanimously) the adoption of following Proposed New Schemes
for 2011/12 Programme:

5.1 Central Area Mobility Crossings - £10,000

5.2 North Terrace Gates only - £5000

5.3 Gough Way Path Bridge - £25,000

5.4 Canterbury Street - £15,000

5.5 Jesus Green and Midsummer Common Paths (Jesus Green paths only) -
£23,786 (not for implementation this year)

5.7 Huntingdon Road 30mph Extension - £2000

Members noted that cycle racks had been installed in Fisher Square. However,
it was further noted that bins had also been proposed at an earlier meeting.
Members had not rejected the idea but rather the specific bins proposed at that
time. Andrew Preston undertook to pursue this matter.

Action: Environmental Projects Manager

Page 47



West / Central Area Committee Tuesday, 21 June 2011

11/41/WAC Planning Applications

11/42/WAC 11/0263/FUL - Parkside, Cambridge

The committee received an application for full planning permission for a three
year extension to the planning permission for a temporary bus supervisor's
kiosk in Parkside, opposite Warkworth Terrace.

RESOLVED (unanimously) to approve the application for the following
reasons:

1. This development has been approved, conditionally, for a period of three
years because subject to those requirements it is considered to conform to the
Development Plan as a whole, particularly the following policies: East of
England plan 2008: Policies SS1, T1, T13, ENV6 and NV7 Cambridge Local
Plan (2006): Policies 3/1, 3/4, 4/11 and 8/1

2. The decision has been made having had regard to all other material
planning considerations, none of which was considered to have been of such
significance as to justify doing other than grant planning permission.

These reasons for approval can be a summary of the reasons for grant of
planning permission only. For further details on the decision please see the
officer report online at www.cambridge.gov.uk/planningpublicaccess or visit
our Customer Service Centre, Mandela House, 4 Regent Street, Cambridge,
CB2 1BY between 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday.

11/43/WAC 11/0439/FUL- 32 Woodlark Road, Cambridge

The committee received an application for full planning permission for the
erection of a new cycle shelter.

The committee received representation from the applicant (Jason Smith) who
made the following points:

I. Family believed it was doing the right thing in providing cycle storage

II. Property has no rear or side access
lll. The scale of the built is in keeping with the house

Page®8



West / Central Area Committee Tuesday, 21 June 2011

IV. Screened from the street
V. Offering a reduced height from the existing building.

Members felt that the existing building was of an acceptable size and design.
Neighbours had not raised any objections. Councillor Hipkin had visited the
site and reported that other gardens in the area are equally cluttered due to
urban nature of the area.

It was suggested that officers could be authorised to accept a retrospective
application for the existing structure.

RESOLVED:

I. (by O to 8) to reject to officer's recommendation to refusal the application.

[I. (unanimously) to approve the application and to give officers delegated
authority to accept a revised application, which could match for the
existing structure for the following reasons:

The following reasons for approval were agreed:

1. This development has been approved because it is considered to generally
conform to the Development Plan, particularly the following policies:

East of England Plan 2008: ENV7
Cambridge Local Plan 2006: 3/4 and 3/12.

2. After representations had been made by both the applicant and the Planning
Officer, and with knowledge of the local area, Committee took the view that the
cycle shelter as constructed is not an intrusive and visually dominant form of
development and does not cause demonstrable harm to the character and
appearance of the locality. The Committee thought that the development
responds positively to the site context and relates satisfactorily to its
surroundings. Therefore the development could be regarded as in compliance
with East of England Plan 2008 policy ENV7, Cambridge Local Plan (2006)
policies % and 3/12 and advice on design in Planning Policy Statement 1
(2005).

The decision has been made having had regard to all other material planning
considerations, none of which was considered to have been of such
significance as to justify doing other than grant planning permission.

These reasons for approval can be a summary of the reasons for grant of
planning permission only. For further detail on the decision please see the
officer report by visiting the Council Planning Department.

Page 49



West / Central Area Committee Tuesday, 21 June 2011

11/44/WAC 11/0627/FUL - 2 Barton Close

The committee received an application for change of use from a dwelling to
student accommodation.

The committee Christopher Lawrence (Bursar of Wolfson College) who raised
the following points on behalf of the applicant:
I. The change of use does not represent a increase in student numbers
II. Property was gifted to the College many years ago.
lll. The time lag in change of use was due to the sitting tenant.
IV. It has always been viewed as part of the college.
V. The students who would occupy it would be freeing up rented
accommodation elsewhere in the City.

RESOLVED: (Unanimously) to accept the officer's recommendation and to
refuse the application for the following reasons:

. The proposal would result in the loss of family residential
accommodation, contrary to policy 7/7 of the Cambridge Local Plan
2006.

[I. The proposed development does not make appropriate provision for
open space or waste storage facilities, in accordance with policies 3/8, or
3/12 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2006 and policies P6/1, P9/8 and P9/9
of the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003; and as
detailed in the Planning Obligation Strategy 2010.

Delegated powers were granted to officers to negotiate the completion of a
s106 Agreement to address reason for refusal 2 in the event of an appeal
including the consideration of additional information in relation to whether there
are sufficient open space facilities within the college campus to meet the
needs of the future occupants of the development thereby negating the
requirement for commuted payments towards off-site provision of open space.

The Committee noted that the application cannot be formally determined until
1t July 2011 and that if letters from residents were received prior to that date

then the application will be brought back to the West Central Area Committee
in August for further consideration.

11/45/WAC Planning Enforcement - Planning Contravention Report

Pages0



West / Central Area Committee Tuesday, 21 June 2011

The committee report from the Development Control Manager regarding a
Planning Enforcement — Planning Contravention Report.

Members made the following comments:

I. The long term future of the site is uncertain and it is currently unsightly.
[I. The current fence offers some screening from an unattractive site.
lll. Fencing also protects from water spray of car wash activities.
IV. Reducing the height of the fence would offer no positive value to the
area.

RESOLVED: (by 5 to 3) to reject the officer's recommendations that the Head
of Legal Services issued an Enforcement Notice.

RECOMMENDATION NOT SUPPORTED.

The Committee considered that enforcement action should not be supported
on the grounds that a reduction in the height of the fence would reduce the
level of screening available to the car wash operation to an unacceptable

degree. However the Committee requested that officers give consideration to
other appropriate means for improving the appearance of the site.

The meeting ended at 11.00 pm

CHAIR

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



Agenda Item 8

Neighbourhood profile update SAFER
Cambridge City West/Central NE1GHBOURHOODS
Neighbourhood

August 2011

Camibriggeahire Page 53



1. INTRODUCTION
Aim
Methodology

2. PREVIOUS PRIORITIES & ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITY
Previous Periorities
CURRENT CRIME & INCIDENT LEVELS 13
RECOMMENDATIONS 16

W W MDD NDN

1.  INTRODUCTION

Aim

The aim of the Neighbourhood profile update is to provide an overview of
action taken since the last reporting period, identify ongoing and emerging
crime and disorder issues, and provide recommendations for future priorities
and activity in order to facilitate effective policing and partnership working in
the area.

The document should be used to inform multi-agency neighbourhood panel
meetings and neighbourhood policing teams, so that issues can be identified,
effectively prioritised and partnership problem solving activity undertaken.

Methodology

This document was produced using the following data sources:

e Crime and Incident data, from April 11 — July 11 and as a comparison
data from December 10 — March 11, and April 10 — July 10.

¢ Information from the Neighbourhood Policing teams, August 2011

e Community intelligence.

e Environmental data from Cambridge City Council for the period April
2011 — July 2011, compared with the same period the previous year.

Page 54



2. PREVIOUS PRIORITIES & ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITY

Previous Priorities

At the neighbourhood panel meeting on 28" April 2011, the following issues
were adopted as priorities. The tables below summarise action taken and the
current situation regarding the priorities that were set:

City Central Neighbourhood

Speeding in Maid's Causeway

Objective

Support the implementation of the 20mph limit

Action
Taken

Between 06/05/11 and 29/7/11 static patrols using speed guns
have been conducted in the area of Maids Causeway. The
speed of over 124 vehicles has been checked with 89 stopped
and spoken to with words of advice given to drivers about their
speed. 3 endorseable tickets have been issued for traffic
related offences.

On 20/06/11 speedwatch training was given to a group of local
residents to enable them to help raise awareness with
motorists of the new limit.

Current
Situation

The speed survey conducted to 14™ April to 21%" April 2011 in
total 37,107 vehicles were surveyed travelling Eastbound on
Newmarket Road of which a total of 41.12% were exceeding
ACPO prosecution guidelines for speed.

On the Westbound Newmarket Road 39922 were surveyed of
which 49.95% were exceeding the guidelines.

Continue
or
Discharge?

Continue?: It is a matter for the committee if they wish to
continue with this particular priority. It would seem from the
survey that vehicles are still exceeding the 20mph speed limit
and that a 40-50 percent of these vehicles are exceeding
ACPO guidelines. A further period of speed checks and driver
education may be required.

Alcohol-related crime and ASB in Sussex Street and environs

Objective | Reduce incidents of alcohol related ASB
Action Between 25/05/11 and 10/08/11 directed high visibility patrols
Taken have been conducted in the city centre and green areas mostly

Page 55




during the night time hours. Groups of visiting youths engaged
with and spoken to and advised about noise and rubbish.

All shops in the area visited and spoken to and reassured that
action is/will be taken and contact numbers given to report any
issues directly to NPT team.

On 21/06/11 contact made with the Bursar of Sidney Sussex
college reference any ongoing issues within the vicinity of the
college and also to discuss the feasibility and possibility of
having a litter bin in Sussex Street to assist with the
appropriate disposal of refuse.

Staff of Sidney Sussex college were spoken to on 09/08/11 and
they stated that there had been a vast improvement in levels of
anti-social behaviour and litter in the area.

From the beginning of July there seemed to be a significant
decrease in the number of students in the area many
dispersing to Parkers Piece where they have congregated
previously.

Current No recently reported incidents of anti-social behaviour,

Situation urination or litter in the area and reports from college’s suggest
situation has improved and recent patrols would indicate that
foreign students have moved to Parkers Piece.

Continue Discharge?: It is again a matter for the committee to review,

or however recent evidence suggests that through the actions

Discharge? | taken the issues around anti-social behaviour and litter have
diminished considerably and that this may be a good time to
end this objective.

Cycle theft

Objective | Reduce levels of cycle theft in Central Area (joint plan)

Action Between 03/05/11 until 10/08/11 numerous cycle crime patrols

Taken have been conducted in the city. There have been several

proactive plain clothes patrols also, one resulting a individual
being arrested for theft of cycle and subsequently jailed for 22
months. A warrant has also been executed at an address in
Cambridge in relation to cycle theft.

Searches by officers have also been conducted on individuals

Page 56




for cycle theft and items used in the execution of theft have
been seized and arrests made.

Current Whilst cycle theft has seen an increase of 73 offences from 171
Situation in the previous period to 244 it is lower when compared with
the same period last year.
Daily high visibility and plain-clothes patrols are being
conducted in relation to cycle theft in the city.
Continue Continue?: It is again matter for the committee if they wish to
or continue with this priority. However, cycle crime remains a
Discharge? | priority issue with the city centre officers.

City West Neighbourhood:

Cycle theft in Castle and Newnham wards

Objective | The aim of this plan was to:

e Reduce the number of cycles stolen in the west of the city

e Bring offenders to justice
Action Police have carried out a number of days of action making use
Taken of a trap bike and other covert tactics. This resulted in 3

arrests.

Community Support Officers have hosted surgeries throughout
the west of the city. These surgeries have been aimed at a
variety of ages and the locations reflect this. Officers have
been permitted to make use of pubs, schools, shops as well as
the mobile police station in order to reach residents of all ages.
During the surgeries the officers have marked cycles with UV
marking and registered their property on Immobilise.

Officers have carried out street surgeries where cyclists have
been stopped when committing any cycling offence and rather
than being issued with a fixed penalty ticket they have allowed
officers to run checks on their cycles and been issued with
crime prevention advice.

PCSOs and Police officers have also made use of their search
powers. They have engaged with cyclists on cycles that do not
fit their profile taking details of cycle and checking it against
reported thefts and against the immobilise database.

Page 57




Officers identified key suspects within the west of the city that
were suspected to have been involved in a large number of
cycle offences. The officers lavished attention on the
individuals and their movements. One of the individuals was
charged with a number of offences including burglary and cycle
theft. The officers will maintain the attention on the individuals
to limit their opportunities to reoffend.

Current Cycle theft offences are slightly reduced when compared with

Situation same period last year (104 v 112) but significantly higher when
compared with last period (112 v 53).

Continue Continue: Cycle theft offences currently account for a large

or proportion of recorded crime in the Castle and Newnham

Discharge? | wards.

Dwelling burglary in Castle and Newnham wards

Objective

The aim of this plan was to:

¢ Reduce the number of dwelling burglaries in the Castle and
Newnham wards.

e To bring offenders to justice.

Action
Taken

Over 243 hours of patrol have been carried out in relation to
this priority. These patrols have been a mixture of plain clothes
and uniform. Officers have patrolled on foot, cycles and made
use of both plain and marked police vehicles.

A large number of the dwelling burglaries have taken place in
the colleges within the beat areas. The University officers have
visited the colleges along with the crime reduction unit to
provide crime prevention. This will remain ongoing as we move
into the new academic year.

A well-known college burglar was released from prison during
this period and began to re-offend. The West team officers
worked alongside reactive and CID officers in order to bring the
male to justice. He was subsequently returned to prison.

Current
Situation

19 offences recorded compared with 40 in the previous period
and 49 in the same period last year.

Continue
or

Discharge.

Page 58




| Discharge? |

Speeding in Castle and Newnham wards

Objective | The aim of this plan was to monitor the speed of vehicles
entering Castle and Newnham.

Action Officers have carried out speed checks on Barton Road,
Taken Grange Road and Huntingdon Road. The days and times of the
checks have been varied. The majority of drivers were well
within the speed limits for the locations. A handful of drivers
were found to be in excess of 30mph in a 30mph restriction but
none were travelling over 35mph. One driver was found to be
travelling at 41mph in a 40mph restriction. The drivers were
stopped and words of advice were given.

Officers accept that drivers do slow down at the sight of an
officer with a hand help speed gun and this is likely to have had
an impact on the figures recorded. We have requested that a
survey is carried out in Granchester Road and Huntingdon
Road by our camera enforcement team. Barton Road has not
been requested at this time due to the speed camera sited at
the location.

Current Waiting on speed survey results.
Situation

Continue Discharge: To give attention as part of normal business.
or
Discharge?

Other Issues

Officers from the West Team have been involved in the investigation to
identify the male sexually assaulting lone females in the Castle and
Newnham area. The last linked offence took place in May. The suspect is still
outstanding.

Prostitution in and around Histon Road has been raised at a number of West
Area committee meetings. Although Histon Road is in the North of the City
the impact is felt by residents within Castle. Police officers from the West
team have carried out covert patrols in order to identify those that are working
within the sex industry. There are only a handful of sex workers that appear to
be working in the area and these have been referred to the Sex Workers
Advisory Network for support. Visible patrols are being used to deter the sex
workers and those that exploit them.

Page 59



Officers are patrolling the locations used by the sex workers to provide their
services. The prostitution on Histon Road is currently a neighbourhood
priority for the North of the city and the work carried out by the West team is
in addition to the work that the North team are undertaking.

Recommendations
Student Crime Intervention

The student population makes up a large percentage of the victims of crime
within the West area with a majority of the colleges being located within the
West of the City. Officers will attend the fresher meetings throughout the city
giving crime prevention advice. Most have left home for the first time and are
used to leaving their bedroom doors open and not ensuring doors and
windows are closed as they leave. Many of the students are from abroad and
may not be aware of some of our laws in relation to cycling, public order and
drunken behaviour. The aim of this intervention would be to reduce the
number of students that become the victims of crime and in a few cases the
offender.

Recording of ASB

Please note that due to changes in the Police incident reporting system
we will now be using the final call type rather than the Closure Class
Definitions in the summary tables listed later in this document.

Neighbourhood trends

Total crime in City West has seen an increase of 254 offences from 1351
reported in the previous period to 1605 reported in the last 4 month period. It
should be noted, however, despite the increase in offences, the current level
of offences is still comparatively lower than the same period last year. The
increase in offences was largely due to cycle theft across all wards and theft
from shop offences in Market. Anti-social behaviour (ASB) has seen an
increase but is also at a lower level than that reported in the same period last
year.

Newnham

e Total crime in Newnham ward has seen an increase from 101 offences
reported in the previous period to 137 over the last 4-month period.
Reductions in dwelling burglary and vehicle crime have been countered by
notable increases in non-dwelling burglaries and cycle theft.

e During the 4-month period, there were 9 dwelling burglaries reported. Five
of these offences occurred on College property in April and May.

e College buildings were further targeted in a series of non-dwelling
burglaries on Grange Road, and Madingley Road. Offender(s) mainly
targeted these properties for metal and tools. In addition, there were 3

Page 60



reports of non-dwelling burglaries targeting cycles stored in sheds on
Barton Road, Clare Road and Perry Court.

e Cycle theft in Newnham has seen a marked increase from the previous
period from 20 offences reported in the previous 4-month period to 48
currently. The vast majority of the offences occurred in and around College
premises.

e ASB incidents remain consistent with the previous period with 47 incidents
reported compared with 41.

e Over the 4-month period, there were 5 reports of abandoned vehicles, 2 of
these reports relate to the same vehicle abandoned on Champneys Walk.
The remaining vehicles were found on Adams Road, Newnham Road and
West Road.

e Four incidents reported on Fen Causeway/Sheeps Green related to groups
of youths, behaving in a rowdy fashion.

e Similarly, there has been a report of a group of youths looking at bikes at a
college premises.

e Furthermore, 5 noise complaints were made during the period, compared
with 1 in the previous period. Three of these complaints were linked to loud
music being played on Grantchester Meadows (all on separate occasions).

Environmental Issues

e Between April and July 2011, there were 14 reports of abandoned vehicles
in the ward compared with 8 during the same period the previous year.
This included 3 vehicles, which were not on site following inspection and 1,
which was subsequently claimed by the owner. In addition, 6 CLE26
notices were issued to offenders on behalf of the DVLA for not displaying
road tax on a public highway, which will result in a fine issued by the
DVLA. 2 vehicles were also impounded on behalf of the DVLA for not
having valid road tax. An additional vehicle is also currently pending further
investigation. There were no specific hotspots during either period.

e Between April and July 2011, there were 4 reports of fly tipping in the ward
compared with 10 during the same period the previous year. Waste
transfer documentation was requested from a trade offender. Lammas
Land (3) was the hotspot during the current reporting period. Lammas
Land (4) and Fen Causeway (3) were the main hotspots during the
previous year.

e Between April and July 2011, 9 derelict cycles were dealt with compared
with 25 during the same period the previous year. There were no specific
hotspots during the current reporting period. Cobbetts Corner (6) and
Lammas Land (5) were the main hotspots during the previous year.

e Between April and July 2011, there were no needles reported in either
period for this area.

Page 61



Castle

Total crime in Castle ward has seen an increase compared to the previous
period, 144 crimes were recorded over the last 4-month period, compared
with 122 in the previous period. The most notable increase was observed
in cycle theft.

Dwelling burglary offences have halved during the period, with only 10
offences reported. In half of these offences, the offender(s) have gained
access through insecure doors or windows.

Three robberies were recorded on the same day in April on Huntingdon
Road whereby an offender has attempted to rob 3 members of the public
all within a 10-minute period. The offender was subsequently arrested and
charged with these 3 offences.

Theft from vehicle offences have seen a 25% reduction compared with the
previous period. Out of the 8 offences reported, offenders targeted front
and rear index plates from 3 vehicles parked on Richmond Road. Offences
have been reported on a monthly basis since May.

A marked increase was noted in cycle theft during the period; however,
this was still comparatively consistent with the same period last year. The
majority of the cycles were stolen from College premises.

ASB levels have also seen an increase, from 38 incidents in the previous
period to 55 currently. Comparatively, this is consistent with the same
period last year.

Eight of these incidents related to problems with large groups of youths
making a lot of noise, using recreational drugs and causing damage.
These incidents were situated on Benson Place, Halifax Road, Huntingdon
Road, Mount Pleasant and St. Stephens Place.

Environmental Issues

Between April and July 2011, there were 4 reports of abandoned vehicles
in the ward compared with 6 during the same period the previous year.
This included 3 vehicles, which were not on site following inspection. In
addition, 1 CLE26 notice was issued to 1 offender on behalf of the DVLA
for not displaying road tax on a public highway, which will result in a fine
issued by the DVLA. There were no specific hotspots during either period.
Between April and July 2011, there were 15 reports of fly tipping in the
ward compared with 8 during the same period the previous year. There
was sufficient evidence to issue a verbal warning. Castle Row (3) and
Pound Hill (3) were the main hotspots during the current reporting period.
There were no specific hotspots during the previous year.

Between April and July 2011, 13 derelict cycles were dealt with compared
with 35 during the same period the previous year. There were no specific
hotspots during the current reporting period. Madingley Road (11) and St
Stephens Place (3) were the main hotspots during the previous year.

Page 62



Between April and July 2011, 9 needles were reported compared with 2
during the same period the previous year. 5 were removed from Sherlock
Close and 3 were removed from Castle Street.

Market

Total crime in Market has increased from 1128 offences reported in the
previous period to 1324.

Violent crimes in Market ward have increased from 226 offences in the
previous period to 241 in the latest 4-month period. This is comparatively
lower than the same period last year, which recorded 296 offences. Most
of the offences were reported on Parkside (26), Sidney Street (23),
Midsummer Common (19), St. Andrews Street (17), Regent Street (14),
Rose Crescent (10), Downing Street (10) and Market Hill (10). 139 of
these offences have been detected (equating to 58% detection rate).
During the period there were 3 robberies reported. Two of these offences
related to the same incident in April where 2 victims were attacked at the
same time on Emmanuel Street. Two offenders were arrested and charged
with both offences. The remaining offence occurred in Jordan’s Yard,
Bridge Street in July, where two offenders targeted a victim while they
were using the parking payment machines at the location. Fortunately, the
victim managed to fight the attackers off.

Cycle theft has seen an increase of 73 offences from 171 in the previous
period to 244 currently. Cycles were most frequently stolen on Regent
Street (18), Parkside (12), Portugal Place (10), St. Andrews Street (10)
and Sidney Street (10). Despite the increase in cycle theft, the level of
offences was still lower than the same period last year.

Theft from shop offences have seen an increase from 199 offences in
previous period to 241 in the latest period, although, offence levels were
still lower than the same period last year. The majority of these were
reported on Sidney Street (60), at the Grafton Centre (37), and Petty Cury
(24).

Over the 4-month period, there were 471 ASB incidents reported in
Market. Comparatively, this is at a higher level than the previous period
which recorded 435 incidents and lower than the same period last year
where 617 incidents were recorded.

During the period, 20 begging/vagrancy incidents were reported in Market.
The majority of these were fairly spread out, there were 4 incidents
reported in Park Street and a further 2 reported in nearby Malcolm Place.
These incidents mainly occurred in May (4).

Rowdy/Nuisance incidents were mainly reported on St. Andrews Street
(22), Regent Street (20), Sidney Street (20), Parkside (17), Chesterton
Road (15) and Burleigh Street (11).

Page 63



Environmental Issues

e Between April and July 2011, there were 7 reports of abandoned vehicles
in the ward compared with 1 during the same period the previous year.
This included 5 vehicles, which were not on site following inspection. 1
vehicle was impounded on behalf of the DVLA for not having valid road
tax. 1 vehicle is also currently pending further investigation. There were no
specific hotspots during either period.

e Between April and July 2011, there were 89 reports of fly tipping in the
ward compared with 83 during the same period the previous year. There
was sufficient evidence to issue 10 formal warning letters to domestic
offenders and 4 formal warning letters to trade offenders. In addition, 3
verbal warnings were issued and waste transfer documentation was
requested from 2 trade offenders. Adam and Eve Street (6), King Street
(6), Market Hill (6) and Market Street (5) were the main hotspots during the
current reporting period. The offences at Market Hill accounted for 2 of the
formal warning letters being sent and Market Street accounted for 1 of the
formal warning letters. Market Street (8), Miltons Walk (5), Market Hill (4),
Regent Terrace (4) and Salmon Lane (4) were the main hotspots during
the previous year.

e Between April and July 2011, 408 derelict cycles were dealt with compared
with 260 during the same period the previous year. Park Street (82),
Trumpington Street (80), Trinity Street (40), New Square (17) and Downing
Street (15) were the main hotspots during the current reporting period.
Sidney Street (39), Downing Street (23), Park Street (15), Lion Yard (14)
and Parkside (14) were the main hotspots during the previous year.

e Approximately 1772 incidents of anti-social cycling occurred between April
and July 2011, compared with approximately 1884 incidents during the
same period the previous year. Hotspots during the current period included
Market Street (339), Bridge Street (355), Trinity Street (307), Sidney Street
(284 and Petty Cury (134). Hotspots during the same period included
Trinity Street (467), Market Street (393), Bridge Street (312), Sidney Street
(308) and Petty Cury (148).

e Between April and July 2011, 34 needles were reported compared with
163 during the same period the previous year. 24 needles were removed
from Midsummer Common, 3 from Adam & Eve Street and 3 from Parkers
Piece. During the previous reporting period 30 needles were removed from
Miltons Walk, 26 from Walnut Tree Avenue, 21 from Adam & Eve Street,
20 from Trinity Street and 11 from St Botolphs Lane.

Page 64



3. CURRENT CRIME AND INCIDENT LEVELS

City West Total Crime
600
500
o 400
E
S 300
5
3]
=200
100
—4—2009/10 —@=2010/11 =—#=2011/12
0
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
City West Total ASB
250
200
E 150 J"‘\
= e—y ~
e
2 100
50
—$=—2009/10 =f=2010/11 ==fe=2011/12
0
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Page 65



14!

Ll9 1871 1401% 68 €AZ 6EC b € 8l 96¢ 1€ Gl 0L Inp — 0} Jdy
GeYy 1:74 1 Gcv 29 661 VL @l Z 6 9¢¢e 14" 8 LL 48N — 0L 98d VEY LT
wy | veer | e 8L Wz | vz | el 4 € we | oz | ov | semr—ypady
14°] 981 1€ Zl Z 1] 0¢ 14 L @\ @@ 8¢ 0L Inp — 0} Jdy s
8¢ 2 ¥z oL z ee | ab 0 z 0l 8 iz | tien-oroea | epses | 3
S§ il €€ ¥l b 95 8 z € 8 9 | oL | keinr—ypady ’
19 202 GE 8 z 8s | e b z 6 b | vz | okinr-opady ©
Vy LoL /T 6 z oz | 2 ! ! L ¢ | 6L | LLiew—o0Loea | weyumey mu
Ly LEL 6¢ 6 ! 8t 9 ! 0 8 9l 6 LLine = 4y ady o
zeL | s8r | wis | 601 Lz | sy | el L 1z e6z | v9 | 2o | ovinr-osady =
vis | ser | oup 18 €0z | vzz | 9¢ 5 zl evz | sz | sy | riiem—oLosg | 1som Ao m.
ess | soor | svs | Lol ovz | eve | oz S 9 sz | ez | ez | teir—ypady e
asv | awmo | swup | ebeweg ﬂﬂm eyl m_mum> SPIOA | oo, S.mm%m Bung | “Bing
1oL | vioL | sewo | reummo | Y| ey | | joyeul SULO | OO | 19MT

piep Aq ‘pooyinoqybiaN Ul S|9AST JUBPIdU| pue aWiI) JUaLINg



Sl

6y | 8S 8S oL | vL|8vc| 8| 1 9 G |gz| 9 | LLieN—0L 290
SEH=TTY]
Ly | L€ 65 L | 8L | voe | €L | 9 G 9 |0z | 2| LLinp—4yady
8¢ 8 € 0 | LL | €] 0 14 8 | LLJBN —0L 920 s
apysed =
GS €l Z L 0 iz | v | ¢ G 0| €| v | LLint—LLady o
L vl | L 0| 2l Ll L 0| L | 6| LLieN—0L 280
weyuman
Ly 4 0 L 0| G | S| O 9 L | 0| S | LLinp—14Lady
8Ls | 08 29 L[SV bz ek 2| VL | S |9z]|€zg| LLiem—0L o8 Z
Isom Ao | 3
6.5 | S 19 6 | 8L |0Se | 22| 8 | 9L | 2 |€Z|LL| Liinp—Lyady =
S o) 0} 2o 3 D.M. b4 ” 35|32 | @ =
o - 3 305 -~ | 22 @ = |35 | @ 5 | a
~ & ® |29 | 9|2 | Q|2 |55 |3 |9|S
o = 25 | 5 c |3 |25 | 5|2
8 i 27 | = |2 |8 |8Z2|2 |a |2
- 3 @ a Sz |€ |85 |3 |5 |s
3 8|2 °5 131332
9] o) mAu o
(0] 5 (0]

"uoneoljgnd Joj sonsne)s [elo se papiebal jou pue spinb e se pasn aq Ajuo pjnoys sainblj asay |

"p81081102
Apuanbasqgns nq piem Buunoqubiau ay) ul paplooal aq Ajjeiiul pjnod a1 sauepunoqg plem aiaym palodel ggy "6 pauodal ale syuspioul Aem ay)
0} @np suoieoo| as1oaid ulejuod jou Aew podal siy} Joj umopyealq adA} gSy oy 10} papasu |Iejap JO [9A8] 8y} MeIp O} pasn Wa)sAS ejep ay} asneosaq

Sl SIy| "92jO SWOH pue 82104 ay) Agq paysiignd aqg |im ey} sainbiy [B1o1JO Sy} YIM JUS)ISISUOD 8q Jou AW Spiem 8y} JO Yoea Joj S|9AS| Jusplou|
9J0N asea|d

piep Aq ‘pooyinoqybiaN ealy 3sap A9 ay) ul sadA] juapiou] gsy ua) doj

Page 67



Pagés 68



Agenda ltem 9

A Cambridge City Council Item
A\ g
To: West / Central Area Committee
Report by: Andrew Preston
Project Delivery & Environment Manager
Wards affected: Castle, Newnham and Market

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS IN THE HIGHWAY

1. Executive summary

e The County Council has recently made the decision to request
commuted sums to fund their increased maintenance liabilities
created by all third party funded projects within the highway,
including those funded by the City Council. This decision affects
two existing Environmental Improvement Projects that have been
approved for delivery. Approval of further funding is therefore
necessary to enable these projects to be delivered.

e The County Council has also approved a joint highways budget
with the City Council to fund minor schemes within the highway.
West / Central Area Committee has been delegated a £5500
share of the County Council’s £25,000 total contribution, subject
to matched funding.

e Should the West / Central Area Committee wish to do so, it can
prioritise schemes and provide match funding from its
Environmental Improvement Programme (EIP) budget.

2. Recommendations
2.1 The West / Central Area Committee is recommended:

2.1.1 to approve funding of the commuted sums identified for increased
maintenance liabilities associated with the Grantchester Road and
Prospect Row Traffic Calming Schemes, totalling £7,610 from the EIP
budget;

2.1.2 to allocate the required funding from the West / Central EIP budget by
reducing the current funding allocated to the Midsummer Common &
Jesus Green Path refurbishment by £7610 to £15,676, which is
currently on hold whilst sources of further funding are established;

Page 69

Report Page No: 1



2.1.3 to allocate £2,750 of the County Council contribution towards the
Canterbury Street Traffic Calming scheme whilst maintaining a total
project budget of £15,000 and to allocate the subsequent saving in
EIP budget allocation to provide match funding for the remaining
£2,750 County contribution;

2.1.4 to select minor highway schemes, taking into account those identified
in Appendix B, for further development and consultation, with a view to
providing match funding of the remainder of the County Council's
£5500 contribution from the EIP budget.

3. Background

3.1 The County Council’s Third Party Funding Policy has existed for some
time, but to date has been applied mainly to Parish Councils, not to
the City Council.

3.2 In order to achieve consistency in its third party funding policy across
the County, the County Council now requires the City Council to fund
any additional maintenance liabilities arising from the City’s decisions,
in the same way as other third parties.

3.3 These are to be provided in the form of commuted sums for assessed
increases in annual maintenance over a twelve-year period.

3.3 All new features introduced within the highway will have an associated
maintenance liability. The assessment will also take into account any
features that are removed, giving a balance of the maintenance
liability.

3.4 The £25,000 County contribution for the Joint Highways Budget,
recently agreed by the County Council’'s Cabinet, was delegated to the
Cambridge Area Joint Committee (CAJC). A list of unfunded minor
schemes was also presented to this Committee for consideration.

3.5 This budget requires funding contributions from the City Council and it
was agreed by the CAJC that it should be further delegated to the
Area Committees to select schemes, taking into account the current
unfunded minor schemes listed in their area. The current list of West /
Central area schemes can be found in Appendix B of this report.

3.6 The Area Committees might then choose to approve funding
contributions for these schemes from their allocated City Council
Environmental Improvement Capital Programme Budget.

Page 70
Report Page No: 2



3.7 The CAJC resolved to delegate the £25,000 budget in favour of the

Area Committees with the higher number of Wards. £7000 was
therefore delegated to East and North and £5500 to West / Central
and South.

4. Implications

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

The assessed increase in maintenance liability for the Grantchester
Road Traffic Calming Scheme amounts to £388.02 annually, leading
to a 12 year commuted sum of £4,656.24. The proposed new
highway assets that lead to this increase are as follows:

2 No. street lighting columns

1 No. illuminated sign

1 No. illuminated bollard

47m length of new kerbing

25m? of new carriageway
Non-illuminated signs and white lining

The assessed increase in maintenance liability for the Prospect Row
Traffic Calming Scheme amounts to £246.20 annually, leading to a 12
year commuted sum of £2954.40. The proposed new highway assets
that lead to this increase are as follows:

e 3 No. precast speed cushions
e 4 No. non-illuminated signs

The current Environmental Improvement Programme budget
allocated to West Central was fully allocated to projects at the last
Area Committee meeting. The budget table in Appendix A illustrates
the agreed funding allocation for projects.

In order to fund the additional £7,610 in commuted sums for
maintenance, the Committee must decide which project or projects
are assigned revised lower budgets.

It is recommended that the Midsummer Common and Jesus Green
Path refurbishment project be reallocated a lower budget of £15,675
in order to provide this funding. This project is currently on hold whilst
sources of further funding are found. This project is also primarily
maintenance of the existing paths and the onus should be placed on
the County Council to provide the majority of the funding as the
Highway Authority.

In order to provide match funding for the minor highway schemes, it is
recommended that £2,750 be allocated from the £5,500 County

Page 71

Report Page No: 3



contribution towards the Canterbury Street Traffic Calming Project.
This would free up £2,750 from the current £15,000 allocated to the
project from the EIP budget, to match fund the remaining £2,750
County contribution to develop and deliver additional minor schemes
from the list in Appendix B.

5. Background papers

These background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

COUNTY COUNCIL NETWORK MANAGEMENT LEAFLET No. 6 (September 2010)
THIRD PARTY FUNDING OF HIGHWAY MEASURES

6. Appendices

APPENDIX A
West / Central Area Committee Budget Table.

APPENDIX B
Current unfunded Minor schemes list for joint funding consideration.

7. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Author’'s Name: Andrew Preston

Author’'s Phone Number: 01223 457271

Author’'s Email: andrew.preston@cambridge.gov.uk
Page 72

Report Page No: 4



	Agenda
	3a 11/0726/FUL - Victoria House, 1 Victoria Street
	11-0726 Drgs

	3b 11/0653/FUL- 68 Maids Causeway
	11-0653 Map
	11-0653 Drgs

	4 Minutes
	8 Policing and Safer Neighbourhoods
	9 Environmental Improvement Projects in the Highway

